ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT ARMED SERVI CES COWM TTEE
Septenber 17, 2012
10: 04 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Wel echowski, Co-Chair
Representati ve Dan Saddl er, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis

Senat or Joe Paskvan

Senat or Joe Thomas

Representative Eric Feige
Representative Bob Lynn
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Charlie Huggins
Representative Craig Johnson

PUBLI C MEMBERS

Bri gadi er General George Cannelos - retired

Li eutenant General Tom Case - retired (via tel econference)
Col onel Ti m Jones

Maj or General Jake Lestenkof - retired

Chick Wallace (via tel econference)

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senat or John Coghi |l |

COW TTEE CALENDAR

BASE REALI GNMVENT AND CLOSURE ROUNDS AND DEVELOPI NG STRATEG ES
FOR RETENTI ON OF M LI TARY | NSTALLATI ONS | N ALASKA

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

STEVE HYJEK, Partner

ASC COW TTEE -1- Septenber 17, 2012



Hyj ek & Fi x

Washi ngton, D.C.

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Speaking as a consultant to the Departnent
of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs, provided testinony regarding
t he upcom ng base realignnment and closure (BRAC) and a strategic
pl an.

MAJOR GENERAL THOVAS KATKUS, Adj utant Ceneral / Conm ssioner
Department of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs

Fort Ri chardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded testinony regarding the upcom ng
BRAC.

CHI CK WALLACE

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded testinony regarding the upcom ng
BRAC.

McHUGH Pl ERRE, Deputy Conmi ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner/ Adjutant Gener al

Departnment of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded response to testinony during the
hearing on base realignnment and closure rounds and devel oping
strategies for retention of mlitary installations in Al aska.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 04: 21 AM

COCHAIR BILL WELECHONSKI called the Joint Armed Services
Commttee neeting to order at 10:04 a.m Representatives Feige,
Lynn, Peterson, and Saddler and Senators Davis, Paskvan (via
tel econference), Thonas (via teleconference), and W el echowski

were present at the call to order. Public nenbers in attendance
were Brigadier Ceneral Cannelos - retired, Lieutenant GCeneral
Case - retired (via teleconference), Colonel Tim Jones, WMjor
Cener al Lest enkof - retired, and Chi ck Wal | ace (via

tel econference). Also in attendance was Senator Coghill.

Base Real i gnnent and Cl osure Rounds and Devel opi hg Strategi es
for Retention of Mlitary Installations in Al aska

10: 04: 42 AM

CO CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI announced that the only order of business
would be a presentation related to the base realignnent and

ASC COW TTEE - 2- Septenber 17, 2012



cl osure (BRAC) rounds and devel oping strategies for retention of
mlitary installations in Al aska.

10: 07: 22 AM

STEVE HYJEK, Partner, Hyjek & Fix, reviewed his work history,
including prior work wth Alaska during the 1995 base
real i gnnment and closure (BRAC). He said an area of concern is
the Budget Control Act, which includes sequestration, a
mechani sm that could be activated by January 2013 and would
double the $487 billion in reductions to mlitary. He said the
focus should be not only on BRAC but al so on budget construction
and inplenentation, personnel reductions, and novenents of
m ssions and equi pnent. He said the secretary of defense
requested authority for the BRAC process to conduct two rounds:
one in fiscal year 2013 (FY 13) and one in FY 15. Currently,
the BRAC has not been approved and likely wll not be approved
by U S. Congress this year; therefore, there will not be a round
of BRAC in FY 13. He said the potential is reasonably strong
that Congress may take favorable action toward approval for a
BRAC round in calendar year 2013. He said the secretary of

defense w Il push hard for the FY 15 BRAC, however, sone
political pundits predict it won't happen wuntil 2017. He
explained that if the BRAC does not take place until 2017, the
bulk of the savings will not be seen until 2022, and since the

Budget Control Act puts pressure on finding $487 billion in
savings between now and 2021, the BRAC would not do the
secretary of defense nuch good if it does not occur until 2017.

MR. HYJEK said everyone is preparing for budget cuts and force
structure adjustnents. He said there was an air force msstep
this year, when an attenpt was nmade to nove the 18th Aggressor
Squadron from Eielson Air Force Base, but there is a strategic
pause in place because of legislation, and the secretary of
defense has commtted not to nove forward with any of those air
craft or personnel novenents while Congress is considering the

FY 13 defense budget. He said the eventual force structure
adjustnment in the mlitary will reduce personnel by over 100,000
peopl e.

10: 12: 49 AM

MR. HYJEK turned to Alaska and his strategic plan. In response

to Co-Chair Welechowski, he agreed to stop periodically during
his presentation to answer questions.

10: 13: 55 AM

ASC COW TTEE - 3- Septenber 17, 2012



MR. HYJEK said slide 2 of his briefing provides an outline of
topics that will be discussed, including the strategic plan -
what has been done to date and what is anticipated in the plan
going forward - as well as other issues that are not the focus
of the plan, but color the recommendations and are near-term
issues that need addressing in order to include FY 13
| egi sl ative budgetary actions. He said slide 3 is entitled,
"State MIlitary Installation Strategic Plan."

MR, HYJEK said his team including people in his firm and
retired General Carrol H "Howie" Chandler, visited each of the
maj or installations in Alaska in June. The timng of the visits
was unfortunate, he said, because it was during the heat of
battl e between the delegation and the state and the comuander at
that time of Pacific air forces, as well as the US. Ar Force,
regarding the 18th Aggressor Squadron proposed alignnment to
Joint Base El nendorf-R chardson (JBER). He said, "The guidance
that was provided to nend the installations was that -- it was a
view that our visit could be linked to that issue, and so they
were told to stick pretty nmuch to a script of their mssion
brief, to respond to direct questions only that were wth
information the public domain, and then any other follow on
guestions would need to be run back through the nmmjor conmand
for disposition and potential response.” He said everyone was
very professional and was followi ng orders. He said the bul k of
the information that has enabled the progress his team has nmade
thus far has come from the Al aska QCuard. He said his team
subnmitted 62 questions to active duty installations and received
a letter in late July from Pacific Air Forces (PACAF) indicating
that any information the team mght wish to have would be in
either the Site Activation Task Force (SATAF) report provided by
the Ar Force, associated with the 18th Aggressor Squadron
proposed novenent, or would be subject to a Freedom of
| nf ormati on Act request.

MR. HYJEK said with the change of command in PACAF, his team
plans to make another run at securing the information, now that

the environnment has changed. He said GCeneral Carlisle has
committed to an open and congeni al as possible rel ationship, and
his team does not want to do anything to jeopardize that. He

said the team is conducting back channel discussions wth PACAF
and the U S. Arny in Al aska. He said Major General Garrett was
brand new when his team arrived, and General Katkus has also
been discussing information requests wth Alaskan Command
(ALCOM). He said the team has reason to believe it will receive
information in the near future; however, it has nmade a phased

ASC COW TTEE -4- Septenber 17, 2012



pl an. Phase one focuses on the Guard, while Phase 2 will be the
omi bus state plan, which will include some details on active
duty installations, with a projected conpletion date sonetine in
Cct ober.

MR. HYJEK said the teamis not sitting on its hands waiting for
information; it has reached out to other agencies, including the
state departnment and the Ofice of the Undersecretary of Defense
for Policy in the Pentagon, to get information and to conduct
di scussions on sonme potential initiatives, including potential
options for realignment of nore advanced F16s from either the
Pacific or from Europe to one of the bases in Al aska. He said
the team has also had conversations with "the air staff" and
sone other elenments in the Pentagon regarding new m ssion
opportunities with new air franes, including the joint strike
fighter, the K46 "future tanker,"” and air frames that fly
without a pilot. Finally, he said, the team has been asking the
U S. Departnent of Defense, particularly the US. Arny and Air
Force, about personnel plans for FY 14 and beyond made as part
of their reaction and adjustnments to the force structure issues

that cane up this year. M. Hyjek said he would discuss the
t wo- poi nt pl an, which would be shown in a PowerPoint
presentation as phase 1 - the reserve conponent, and phase 2 -
the active conponent, including JBER, Eielson Ar Force Base,

and Fort Wi nwight.

10: 20: 36 AM

COLONEL JONES observed that there are a relatively small nunber
of information requests made to the U S. Arny in Al aska, and he
asked why.

MR. HYJEK answered that it was difficult to determ ne what
needed to be requested. He said the team received a command
brief conprised of 10-12 slides, and it was able to ascertain
i nformation, such as base operation support costs. He indicated
that requests for other information regarding encroachnment
i ssues, future mlitary construction, and the future defense
pl an, have not yet been answered, but when they are, that wll
allow the teamto do a foll owup request.

10: 22: 04 AM

SENATOR THOVAS said he is disappointed with the disingenuous
approach to releasing information, as well as the reluctance to
rel ease information, related to Eielson Air Force Base
(Eielson). He said he thinks it is odd that questions regarding

ASC COW TTEE -5- Septenber 17, 2012



cost resulted in so little information other than the concl usion
given, and he expressed his hope that M. Hyjek is correct that
there will be a better relationship through which the team can
gather information in future.

MR. HYJEK said public and private statenents have been made by
Ceneral Carlyle indicating that he has a desire for a nore
transparent process when working with the state. He said the
intent of the visit was about how Al aska could place itself in
the nost optimal situation in the future, and reiterated that he
does not want this issue to becone a point of contention with
t he conmands.

10: 24: 34 AM

MR. HYJEK stated that slide 4 shows how the team develops a
strategic plan by: using the BRAC 2005 criteria is the baseline
against which all the installations are evaluated; using
information from all of the service teams, as well as from the
BRAC commi ssion; reviewing all the data that was prepared by the
US. Any in 2008 for the "grow the force" evaluation of arny
installations, as well as the limted anmount of data regarding
the force structure adjustnents proposed by the U S. A r Force;
taking into account the revision of mlitary strategy,
highlighting the Asian and Pacific focus, for exanple, by
providing a balance in the refueling capabilities in Hawaili
versus Al aska,; focusing on capability, cost, and power
projection, particularly with Alaska as a strategic platform
not viewing the installation as a single entity wthin the
perineter of the base itself, but Iooking at areas where
services can be shared with [ ocal communities; avoiding a narrow
view of having just an Alaska set of installations; finding
areas of collaboration; and considering tanker placenent.

MR. HYJEK said having conpleted the analysis, the team wl|
provide a matrix that pits the installations against the BRAC

criteria and score installations: red for poor, yellow for
fair, green for good, and blue for excellent. Then it wll
provi de recomendations for courses of action. Further, the
team will consider a holistic view in ternms of what the state

can do for the mlitary industry and vice versa. One exanpl e,
he said, is how collaborative efforts in terns of energy policy
coul d benefit both parties.

10: 29: 40 AM

ASC COW TTEE - 6- Septenber 17, 2012



MR. HYJEK, in response to Co-Chair Welechowski, said the top
four out of eight criteria used in 2005 are called mlitary
value criteria, and they focus on: operational readiness and
joint war fighting; diverse clinmate, terrain, and contribution
to honeland defense; the ability to support surge operations,
which he said is a fine balance; and the installation of man
power cost, which includes how an installation ranks with others
of its size and type and whether there have been spikes in
costs. He said the last four criteria are called the tie
breakers, and they are: cost of base realignnent action
(COBRA), which takes into consideration closing costs versus
cost savings and generates a net present value cost to determ ne
how soon there would be a pay back fromclosing an installation;
econom c inpact, which is inportant to the communities but |east
inmportant to the U. S. Departnent of Defense (DoD); the ability
to absorb in a community, which is consideration of growh; and
envi ronnent al i ssues. In response to a followup question, he
confirnmed that these criteria are in statute and will be used in
the next BRAC round. He said the team hopes to have a draft
plan ready in md- to | ate-Qctober.

10: 33: 53 AM

CO CHAI R SADDLER said the issue of economc inpact is inportant
to Fairbanks, Alaska, and he asked M. Hyjek for his
recommendation regarding whether or not to enphasize that
concern to DoD.

MR. HYJEK responded that it is a reasonable issue, and clarified
that he did not nean that DoD does not care about the issue;
however, he enphasized that it is not a driver in DoD s analysis
to determ ne which bases to expand, close, or realign. He said
it is rare for a commnity to not want to keep its mlitary
base, so DoD expects econom c inpact to be discussed. He said
the commssion will want to see how significant the inpact is,
particularly if it affects education.

10: 34: 58 AM

BRI GADI ER GENERAL CANNELOCS, regarding strategic location, said
those who live in Alaska like to believe that it is the center
of the universe, which can reach out and touch Europe and Asia
nore quickly. He asked if that is self-evident to the decision-
makers or should be highlighted for them with good maps and
graphic illustrations.

ASC COW TTEE -7- Septenber 17, 2012



MR. HYJEK responded that those who do the first cut in the
analysis of the BRAC are nunber crunchers and don't focus on

econom c inpact; later on consideration of operational trade-
offs, such as location and capability will come into play. He
said he does not believe everyone in DoD realizes the strategic
position of Al aska. He related an exanple of his experience
with Luke Air Force Base, in Phoenix, Arizona, and the
educational process that was necessary to illustrate the
conpatibility of the installation wth current and future
oper at i ons. He said Alaska's process is an educational one and

will not be a short-termvictory.

10: 38: 05 AM

GENERAL CANNELOS conplinented M. Hyjek for any involvenent he
m ght have had related to Luke Air Force Base.

10: 38: 22 AM

CO CHAI R SADDLER asked M. Hyjek for his opinion regarding "the
quality of the nunbers that are being crunched about Al aska
bases. "

VR. HYJEK distinguished the difference between the 18th
Aggressor Squadron force structure adjustnment versus the BRAC
which are two separate groups with two different processes. He
said the reason for the BRAC process and comm ssion is because
all too often there is flawed anal ysis and data. Nevert hel ess,
t he BRAC s oversi ght does not nean the process is flaw ess.

10: 40: 11 AM

REPRESENTATIVE FEIGE inquired as to the life expectancy of the
KC- 135R base tankers currently based at Eielson Ar Force Base
and the possibility that those tankers wll be noved to
Fai rchil d.

MR. HYJEK said there is no discussion of novenent of tankers
from Eielson to Fairchild, and it is highly unlikely. He said
when the KC-46 basing goes forward, the odds on favorites for
active duty installation is Fairchild Air Force Base and the
odds on favorite for the Air Guard facility is Pease A r Force
Base in New Hanpshire. He said the view is that Washington
State would likely get the KC 46. He noted that Boeing is in
Washi ngt on. He said the KC135R is going to be around for a
long tinme, because of budget restraints. He said Phase 1,
including the school house, the active duty operational base,

ASC COW TTEE - 8- Septenber 17, 2012



and the guard base, involves approximately 60 aircraft. Phase 2
won't be considered until 2020.

10: 43: 11 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN offered his understanding that earlier M. Hyjek
had indicated that there are F-16s in Asia and Europe that
"they" are trying to get to the bases in Al aska. Regar di ng
readiness criteria, he asked if it is a consideration that
Eielson Ar Force Base is not subject to higher risks of
eart hquake or vol canic ash in the atnosphere.

MR. HYJEK clarified that neither the DoD nor the U S. Air Force
is looking at that; it is his team as consultants to the State
of Alaska, that is |looking at the opportunity for the potenti al
of having aircraft currently based overseas cone to Al aska. He
explained the reason the team is |looking at those two
capabilities is because of the capability of the aircraft that
are located in Europe and Japan. He said Eielson Air Force Base
woul d be a focus, but the objective is to first get the aircraft
into the state. He said the team is |ooking for opportunities
to generate or initiate action, but there are no DoD initiatives
or plans underway to do anything in the F-16 or F-35 air frames
at this tine.

10: 45: 13 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if the worldw de BRAC process considers
eart hquakes or vol canic ash as risk factors.

MR. HYJEK answered that it is probably in the mx, but said he

is not sure how high in the profile it is considered. He
recalled an installation in the BRAC 2005 where the potenti al
for tornadoes was considered. He said environnental issues of

that nature and their inpact on operations are consi dered.

10: 46: 09 AM

SENATOR THOVAS expressed concern that the bean counters do the
first review He said he thinks that is short-sighted, because
the first consideration should be strategic |ocation. He
offered his understanding that that was the top priority in the
list previously stated by M. Hyjek. He said he thinks defense
systens have been devel oped in the past to shorten the conflict.
He stated his belief that location is extrenely inportant and
that an analysis of a war could prove that.

ASC COW TTEE -9- Septenber 17, 2012



MR. HYJEK responded that the team intends to push strategic

| ocation as a critical issue. He reminded the commttee that
his responsibility is to give the nost honest opinion about how
the process goes forward. He said before the nunmber crunching
begins, the last list is pulled up. If an installation has
survived in the past, that will be considered. The next factor
examned is cost, including those costs that may not have been

previously considered. He said froma pure cost standpoint, the
Arny War Col l ege in Pennsylvania would not be in that state, but
because there are other things that have happened in Carlisle
Pennsyl vania, and because every senior arny |eader has been
through the college, that installation will not be noved. He
said at the last, nost senior level of review, the input of
sponsorship and conbatant comanders becones of great val ue,
because the four-star level has only so much tinme for review

He said, "If they really care and they have a concern or they're
a real supporter, that's good for nme to know, and if they don't
care, then | probably have to go with the experts on ny staff

who put this reconmmendation in front of ne."

10: 51:48 AM

GENERAL CANNELCS, regarding the joint war fighting criteria,
asked if the possible loss of Ei elson Ar Force Base would
dimnish the joint capability of Fairbanks and adversely affect
Fort Wi nwright.

MR. HYJEK said he does not think there would be a ripple effect,
because t he review would consi der i mpact s of ot her
install ations. He said Fort Wainwight is an attribute for
Eielson Air Force Base, and the Air Force would not be allowed
to do sonething that woul d jeopardi ze the Arny.

10: 52: 48 AM

GENERAL CASE noted that he has not heard nention of the training
mechani sm

MR. HYJEK confirnmed he had not yet discussed that. He remarked
upon the unique environnment of the Arctic and working in it. He
said the problemis nost wars have been fought in the desert or
jungle, not the Arctic environnent, and he stressed the
i nportance of recognizing how that environment can affect a

future conflict. He said the teamis trying not only to push
the strategic | ocati on, but also the unique training
environnment. He stated, "W have to work hard to nmake sure that

ASC COW TTEE -10- Septenber 17, 2012



there's not a tradeoff of that training environment in Al aska
versus a cost-savi ngs neasure sonepl ace el se. ™

10: 54: 45 AM

CO CHAIR SADDLER asked if there is a difference in the process
this time around.

MR, HYJEK expl ai ned that the BRAC was originally envisioned as a
cost-savings ability to get rid of excess infrastructure, reduce
operational costs, and realign forces to be the nobst efficient
from an operational and cost perspective. The |ast BRAC was
transformati onal : the U S Arny used it as a vehicle to bring
troops back from overseas and avoid a fight over which base was
going to be the beneficiary; the US. Ar Force used the |ast
BRAC to realign assets that were in the Guard to nove them to
active duty and adjust the reserve conponent as it saw fit; the
U.S. Navy Marine Corps used it to get rid of excess industrial
capability that it could no longer afford to keep. This tine
around, he opined, the strategy by the U S. Ar Force was to use
the force structure to do whatever it wanted to do in the CGuard,
by virtue of manning equipnent and |ocation and focusing the
BRAC on active duty installations, because the next BRAC is al

about saving noney. He said Secretary of Defense Leon E
Panetta is focused on cutting costs while still delivering
capability. He said the way to do that is by closing active
duty installations. In terms of the U S. Ar Force, that neans
fewer fighters. He offered further details. In regard to the

US Ay, M. Hyjek said until the actual mxed force design
conmes out, one can only surm se that heavy forces are going to

take nore hits than the light forces wll. He offered an
exanpl e. He said he thinks the US. Arny is also going to
consider industrial operations. He said force structure will be

used to "tee up" what all the mlitary services want to go after
in a future BRAC Budgeting for mlitary construction (M LCON)
conbined with force structures will be |leading signals to what
wi || be consi dered.

10: 58: 42 AM

CO CHAIR SADDLER asked if it is fair to look at this as three
phases of one process.

MR.  HYJEK answered yes. He said, "The BRAC wll be the
cul m nation of these other processes feeding into it."

10: 59: 22 AM

ASC COW TTEE -11- Septenber 17, 2012



MR. HYJEK said slide 5 relates to the team engaging with the
del egation and the state on issues that exist now and into the
future. He said the 18th Aggressor Squadron's SATAF [report]
affected the teanis ability to get data, and he rem nded
everyone that there is a strategic hold related to that. He
reiterated that there were C130s that would be inpacted, as
well as the 176 at JBER He said there is a change of command
at PACAF and the teamis working to build the relationship with
PACAF. The team has also worked with Ceneral Carlyle, who
understands the inportance of good relationships. Regar di ng
budget, he said Congress will not finish the 13 appropriations
bills by Septenber 30, so the governnent will operate in a six-
month continuing resolution, which wll fund DoD at the 2012
budget, mnus 5 percent. As a result, defense appropriations
bills will be kicked out until next year. He expressed his hope
that next year Congress wll look at issues with comercially
directed spending, which then potentially would have an inpact
with regard to mlitary construction projects in Al aska. M.
Hyj ek said sequestration would begin in January 2013 if nothing
changes. He said both Congress and the Admnistration are
concerned about the potential occurring and are |ooking for ways
to negotiate an agreenent; however, no significant action wl

take place until a lame duck session in the Novenber-Decenber
time frame. In terns of the future, he reiterated that sonme say
a BRAC will be authorized in 2013, while others say it wll be
2017. He said Secretary of Defense Panetta is being asked to
hold off on force structure adjustnents, noving people, and
saving noney, but attain a $487 billion cut, and he cannot do
that w thout BRAC authority; therefore, he may allow a greater
pause on force structure adjustnents and roll those into the

BRAC process. He said everyone should be concerned that if a
2015 BRAC is approved next year, the fiscal year from which the
DoD uses data to nmeke its decisions will already be half over

He concluded, "That's why, as we get our plan conpleted, we my
urge for sone quick action on sone itens that the state has
control over, which could potentially create a beneficial inpact
for each of the installations.™

11: 03: 23 AM

CO CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked if there are other installations at
risk in Al aska, other than Ei el son Air Force Base.

MR, HYJEK said there are risks of either negative realignnent or

sonme reduction in force, but not risks of a significant negative
action, such as taking away a major unit. He expressed concern

ASC COW TTEE -12- Septenber 17, 2012



about Fort WAinwight's costs. He said in 2005, the Arny Basic
Study Goup ranked 97 Arny installations against a set of
criteria, one of which was "cost of operating against the
capability provided," and Fort Winwight ranked 97 out of 97.
Qoviously negative action was not taken on Fort Wainwight in
"05, but [the state] should be prepared to address that. \V/ g
Hyj ek stated that his focus is greater on the northern tier of
installations in Alaska, but clarified that does not nean the
southern tier installations should not be prepared for the next
BRAC. He said, across the board, joint basing has not delivered
as many of the benefits that DoD thought it would. He said he
thinks joint basing will be studied in the BRAC round to
determ ne whether or not the process should be continued.

11: 06: 27 AM

CO CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked how many bases across the U. S. m ght
be at risk, and he asked for conparatives with previous BRAC
years.

MR. HYJEK said it is difficult to provide a hard nunber. 1In the
2005 BRAC, there were roughly 80-100 proposed closures and 200-
250 realignnment actions. Next tinme there wll be fewer
alignnments and fewer closures; however, the closures wll be
bi gger. In terms of citing other installations, he expressed
concern for Ellsworth Air Force Base [in South Dakota] and Red
Ri ver Arny Depot in Texas. He clarified that he is not saying
those are the two that face the greatest threat, but said the
Air Force cannot afford to continue to support the fighter
bonber bases they have and the Arny cannot continue to support
its industrial operations when they can be done by the private
sector.

11: 08: 31 AM

CO- CHAI R SADDLER, regarding joint basing, asked if M. Hyjek was
tal king about unwi nding current joint basing decisions or not
doing it nmore in the future.

MR. HYJEK answered that not doing it in the future is a clear
possi bility, whereas unw ndi ng woul d have to be revi ewed.

11: 09: 19 AM

CO CHAI R SADDLER asked if there are any real sinple actions that
Al aska coul d take now.

ASC COW TTEE - 13- Septenber 17, 2012



MR. HYJEK said one item that would be in the teamis report is
related to low cost power for mlitary installations, but he
said he would not recomend it unless it would produce a savings
to the state of at least 8 to 10 percent.

11:11: 04 AM

CO-CHAIR W ELECHOANSKI said he |looks forward to the concl usions
in the report.

11:11: 31 AM

MR. HYJEK, in response to a series of questions, reiterated his
previ ous statements about the foreseen timng of future BRACs.
He said the Air Force is doing its preparatory and due diligence
work in the event that it can execute in 2014. He offered an
exanple. He said hypothetically, if the 18th Aggressor Squadron
were to leave, it would adversely affect the long-termviability

of the 168th [Aggressor Squadron]. He said it is a Domno
effect.
11:17: 15 AM

MAJOR GENERAL THOVAS KATKUS, Adjutant General/Comm ssioner

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs, confirned that the
Air Force plans for everything. For exanple, it considers
having a wing on a comercial air field and whether there is
"any conponent of Eielson that could remain in order to support

it." He said, "W have a 24-hour-a-day mssion, 7 days a week,
365 days out of the year; that wasn't part of the cal cul ations,
so they're having to deal with that." He said the Air Force is

considering what it can do to make the 168th nore relevant,
whi ch includes how nuch fuel it pushes. He said, "So, we're a
very viable unit; it's just a matter that if they close the base

they're still going to have to identify where we're going to be
| ocated. "
11:18: 30 AM

MR. HYJEK, in conclusion, enphasized that the plan the team w ||
propose is not a reactive one; it recognizes that if a BRAC
occurs or even if force structure adjustnents are nade, DoD wil |
shrink. Notwi thstanding that, he said there are areas with room
for novenent, and the team wants to be as proactive as possible
to seek new mssion opportunities. He said as the team
conpletes its plan, it will identify both near-term and | onger-
term issues for consideration by the state and by the

ASC COW TTEE -14- Septenber 17, 2012



| egi sl ature. He said there is good cause for optimsm that
there will be inproved |ines of communication with the comrand,
which is sensitive to the issues in Alaska. He said the bottom
line is that the BRAC is a three-el enent process, with near- and
short-term i ssues pending, and the potential of a BRAC as early
as 2015.

11: 20: 28 AM

CO- CHAIR SADDLER, regarding future mssions, observed that
unmanned aerial vehicles (UAVs) and drones seem to be the nost
cost-effective to deploy. He asked if they are being considered
by other states or are "up for grabs.™

MR. HYJEK responded that renotely piloted aircraft (RPA) and
"cybers" are "the flavor of the day.”" He said the state should
be careful to select a segnent of the RPA or cyber areas where
there is a need. He said the Federal Aviation Adm nistration
(FAA) will not allow the RPA to be flown outside of restricted
air space. He relayed that current RPA technol ogy |acks de-
icing capabilities, which is a limting factor for Al aska. He
stated that the Ar Force |ooks towards the Ar Guard for
"reach- back"” capabilities, where it can fly fromthe U S to air
frames el sewhere in the world, track targets, gat her
intelligence, and execute against targets through various
m ssions that the Air Guard can perform Regardi ng the cyber

areas, he recomended filling a niche where there is growh
capability, which neans focusing on aggressor squadrons rather
than running a network operation center, for exanple. He said

RPA and cybers are two areas on which the teamw || focus.

11:22: 55 AM

CO CHAIR SADDLER recollected that GCeneral Case had referenced
the training capabilities of the joint Al aska Pacific Range
conpl ex. He asked if it would be beneficial for Alaska's suit
if the state nade additional comrtnents to the Northern Rail
Extension to inprove access to the Joint Pacific Al aska Range
Compl ex (JPARC).

MR. HYJEK said he has no good answer yet and would need nore
revi ew.

11: 23: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN read that sonme are advocating for
i nprovenent of the mssile defense system He asked if there

ASC COW TTEE - 15- Septenber 17, 2012



woul d be increased funding and spending in Al aska to upgrade Ft.
G eely.

MR. HYJEK offered his understanding that the U S. Arny continues
to plan to make investnents in the infrastructure and capability
of Fort Geely. Furthernore, he said the team received
information last week that there likely would be expansion of
the mssile interceptor tracking and defeat capability in the
Lower 48, particularly as nore challenges are discovered rel ated
to the mssile defense network in Europe.

11: 25: 02 AM

CO CHAIR SADDLER inquired as to how Alaska's efforts stack up
conpared to that of other states.

MR, HYJEK said he thinks Alaska is doing just fine. He said
Al aska has certainly denonstrated a clear and credi bl e deterrent
to the US Ar Force in terns of the way the state, the
del egation, and the comunity came together in regard to the
18t h Aggressor Squadron issue, which says a lot in terns of non-

BRAC acti ons. He stated, "In terns of the ability ... of the
state to PACAF, air nobility command, and the nmjor commands on
side, | think we're equal or ahead of other installations of
other states in the country.” He said he would give Alaska a B

grade at this point, and he said his teamis trying to help the
state reach a higher grade. Sone states have their heads in the
sand, waiting, unprepared, for a BRAC to happen, but history
shows those |ocations do not do well. In response to a foll ow
up question, he said he does not know which states have the gold
standard, but suggested that Kansas may be a good exanple,
because it has kept its governor's mlitary council intact and
comne to Washington, D.C, twice a year to neet wth DoD
of ficials. He noted that Kansas was "the sixth |argest gainer"
in the BRAC 2005.

11: 28: 28 AM

GENERAL KATKUS offered praise to M. Hyjek for his presentation
and expertise. Regarding the wunfortunate timng nentioned
previously by M. Hyjek, he said the [18th] Aggressor Squadron
nmove set the stage for a confrontational environnent. He said
senior |eadership has denonstrated that it realizes all of

Al aska is being considered when determining how to mnake the
state a better place in which the mlitary operates. Regar di ng
Col onel Jones' prior conmment about the information fromthe U S.
Arnmy in Al aska, he noted that tonorrow he would neet with Mjor

ASC COW TTEE - 16- Septenber 17, 2012



CGeneral Garrett to converse and generate nore questions. He
said |last week he nmet with CGeneral Stephen Hoog and identified a
way to get that information to [M. Hyjek], who is working hard
on Phase 1, but needs information to nove forward. He said
General Carlyle has established that he wants a good working
relationship with Alaska, and both General Hoog and Major
CGeneral Garrett are in the position to make that happen.

CENERAL KATKUS clarified that while [M. Hyjek] has nmany
contacts, he does not have insider information, but he is
setting Alaska up to be in "the best position." Regardi ng the
National Guard, he confirmed that cyber and RPA are the buzz
words of the day. Al aska also has two factors in its favor:
space and the Arctic. He stated that Al aska operates in md-
course range, which is the perfect spot in which to be working.
He said a ot of nobney needs to go into the boost phase and the
term nal phase. Ceneral Katkus stated that the U S. Northern
Command (NORTHCOVM) has identified that the reconnai ssance
surveillance deficit exists in terns of the Arctic. He said the
Arctic is going to be an area for mlitary, DoD, and Coast Cuard
grow h in Al aska.

11:31: 41 AM

GENERAL CANNELCS stated that the 176th Wng is the biggest and
nost conplicated wing in the Ar Qard, and it includes
strategic airlift, tactical airlift, and rescue. He said

soneone considering only costs could cut one of those m ssions
but keep the w ng.

MR. HYJEK agreed, but noted that alnost every one of those
m ssions currently is tied to an active duty fight. He offered
exanpl es. He said there are few "130s" out there, so he
recommended highlighting the association with the 130s renains,
which is protection that can be provided.

11:33: 21 AM

CHI CK WALLACE in Fairbanks, regarding the cost of towers, asked
if there is any cost relationship between natural gas and coal,
because Eielson Air Force Base and Fort Wi nwight uses coal,
which is a cheap source of power generation. He asked if M.
Hyj ek is suggesting that the state should build a gasline.

MR. HYJEK said he is not making that recomendation to the

state, but is recommending that the state review the total net
cost of current coal-fired operations both to the state and the

ASC COW TTEE -17- Septenber 17, 2012



DoD, including consideration of environmental conpliance, system
i nprovenents, and |ow cost power paynents made to Al askans in
the civilian community, and then <consider the significant
investnment that would be required for natural gas and whether
some of those other costs would go away as a result of wusing
natural gas. He said he does not know the answer, but thinks it
is sonething that needs to be consi dered.

11:35: 07 AM
Mc HUGH Pl ERRE, Deput y Comm ssi oner, Ofice of t he
Comm ssi oner/ Adj ut ant CGeneral , Depart ment of Mlitary &

Veterans' Affairs, stated that the Al aska Energy Authority (AEA)
is working closely wwth M. Hyjek and the legislature and plans
to provide information to them so that the mlitary can be part
of the energy solution. He confirmed that his office is not
advocating for one particular solution, but wants everyone to be
aware that "DoD is affected just as nuch as naybe the private
honme owner in the area.”

11:35:49 AM

CO CHAI R W ELECHONSKI expressed his thanks for the presentation
and subsequent information provided.

11: 36: 01 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the Joint
Armed Services Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 11:36 a.m

ASC COW TTEE - 18- Septenber 17, 2012



